BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD MEETING MINUTES – September 20, 2017

Present: Abraham (alternate), Eick, Fenberg, Heldt, McLain – Birmingham

Bayer, Borgon, Gugni, Maly, Delaney (alternate) – Village of Beverly Hills

Ettenson – Village of Bingham Farms

Stakhiv - Franklin

Absent: Bozell, McAlear, Weller – Birmingham

Also Present: White – Executive Director

Currier - Attorney for Cable Board

Kowalski – Bloomfield Community Television Creech – Administrator, Village of Franklin

Phillips – Intern, Village of Franklin

McLain called the meeting to order at 7:48 AM in the Village of Beverly Hills Municipal Building at 18500 W. Thirteen Mile Road.

APPROVE MINUTES OF CABLE BOARD MEETING HELD August 16, 2017

Motion by Heldt, seconded by Ettenson to approve the minutes of the Regular Cable Board Meeting on August 16, 2017, as presented.

Motion Passed.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

MUNICIPAL SUPPORT SERVICES GRANT REQUEST - THE VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN

Jim Creech, Franklin Village Administrator, presented the first of two (2) requests. He referred to his letter dated September 14, 2017 that included support documentation for a grant of \$3,800 to fund the monthly Comcast services at the Village Hall (Broughton House) and the Kreger House. The Kreger House is a Community Center and provides meeting space for many community organizations. It is also open to the public for use. Comcast services at the Village Hall would be \$135/mo. (\$1,600/yr.) and services at the Kreger House would be \$185/mo. (\$2,200/yr.).

McLain confirmed with White that this was part of the Municipal Support Services line item in the budget.

Motion by Heldt, seconded by Maly to approve a Municipal Support Services grant in an amount not to exceed \$3,800 to the Village of Franklin for Comcast internet services for the Village Hall (Broughton House) and internet, cable and phone services for the Kreger House (Community Center) for 2017-2018.

Borgon clarified that the Kreger House services include internet, cable and phone whereas the Village Hall includes the internet only.

Roll Call Vote: Motion Passed (10-0).

Heldt proposed to amend the agenda to include the Village of Beverly Hills' request for a Municipal Support Services Grant. McLain stated that at the same time the second request from Franklin could be postponed.

Motion by Maly, seconded by Stakhiv to amend the agenda to include the request by Beverly Hills Public Safety Director, Richard Torongeau, for a <u>MUNICIPAL</u> <u>SUPPORT SERVICES GRANT</u> and to defer Franklin's <u>PEG GRANT REQUEST</u> until later on the agenda.

Motion Passed.

MUNICIPAL SUPPORT SERVICES GRANT REQUEST - VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS

Referring to the September 13, 2017 memo to the Cable Board from Richard Torongeau, Beverly Hills Public Safety Director, McLain presented the Village's request for a grant for municipal support services. It is an internet access grant request for FY 2017/2018 for four (4) computer services; local area network, building video, in-car video and audio recordings. Comcast is providing the department with internet service at the cost of \$82.90/mo. (\$994.80/year) for the Beverly Hills Department of Public Safety from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. The Director attached copies of the statements for July and August, 2017.

Motion by Ettenson, seconded by Fenberg to approve a Municipal Support Services Grant for internet services for the Village of Beverly Hills Public Safety Department in the amount not to exceed \$82.90/month for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 (July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018) or \$994.80/year.

Roll Call Vote: Motion Passed (10-0).

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Cable Action Committee

Eick, Chairman, was unable to attend the last meeting. White commented that the committee was relying on Bayer's expertise and background with IT matters with regards to a new BACB website and redesign. White received a call from Muniweb, who is the Cable Board's web manager, informing her that the platform the Cable Board uses would no longer be supported after November 30, 2017, as the software is outdated and very few of their clients use that software. Muniweb has offered to come to a Cable Action Committee meeting to ascertain what the Board might be looking for in a website redesign and then provide a proposal. McLain pointed out some of the difficulties with the present website.

The next meeting will be Thursday, October 5 at 5:30 PM in the Baldwin Public Library in

Birmingham on the second (2nd) floor. She also mentioned that a social get-together was being planned for either that same Thursday evening or Thursday, September 14.

PEG Committee

In McAlear's absence, McLain noted there would be a brief meeting after this Cable Board meeting to discuss some items and two (2) specific proposals from BCTV.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

White referred to her monthly report dated September 14, 2017. One complaint which was pending from last month has been resolved and closed. It was from a Beverly Hills resident who was dealing with the removal of low hanging wires on his father's property. It was determined that they belonged to AT&T. The resident will contact AT&T about a resolution.

This month there were two (2) complaints since the last meeting. The first was submitted by a Beverly Hills resident concerning low hanging wires on her property. It was established that the wires belonged to WOW which was contacted and a new mainline was installed. This complaint is closed. The second complaint was from a Birmingham resident about ongoing problems with her Comcast internet service. This complaint is pending.

The account balances for the MBS, BBCU and Beverly Hills accounts were provided to the Board, in addition to the monthly Revenue and Expense Budget Reports, as of August 31, 2017.

Since the last meeting White has written two (2) checks on behalf of the BACB, including one to the Birmingham Bloomfield Chamber for the ad which should be published soon after September 28, 2017 and one to the Birmingham Public Schools for the PEG Grant which was approved at the last meeting.

Additional Notes

There was an August 20, 2017 article in the Detroit Free Press about some state and local governments that are looking at imposing a tax on streaming service plans as a way to offset declining sales taxes and other revenue shortfalls. Some states and cities have passed what is called a "NetFlix" tax.

Referencing the Board's discussions about drones, she found an article addressing this issue. According to a survey of risk managers, about 61% are cautious about the use of unmanned aerial vehicles, or drones, primarily due to concerns about invasion of privacy.

Due to the hurricane situation in Florida, Charter Communications and Xfinity have assisted by opening up numerous Wi-Fi hotspots across the state for free use during the emergency.

Kyle Masurek, Comcast Representative, shared that Comcast was expanding its Internet Essentials program in Detroit to include low-income residents 62 and older. White explained the details of the program. So far, there are about 13,000 low-income families in Detroit and 49,000 statewide which use this program. Another item he shared was that Comcast and Google announced the nationwide launch of YouTube on Xfinity X1. YouTube content would be

accessible via the X1voice remote and YouTube videos would be featured throughout Xfinity on Demand.

Also on Comcast, there has been a change to a channel lineup. Effective on or about October 10, 2017, WeatherScan will no longer be available as part of the Xfinity Digital Preferred Service.

Responding to Ettenson's inquiry concerning the Birmingham resident's longstanding problems with her Comcast internet service, White stated that the complaint had been escalated. Comcast promptly responded to White that it had been re-assigned to another Comcast representative to work with the subscriber. Following up on the subject, there was a discussion about efficient customer service.

McLain addressed the confusion of identifying the ownership of low hanging wires. She requested that White contact all three (3) providers and request an exact description of which wires are theirs and exactly where they are located on the pole. Because of all the construction in the area and/or residents moving and disconnecting and reconnecting the services, this information would be helpful. McLain reminded residents that if they want wires buried to please handle it now while the weather is warm. White brought attention to the pictures that were included in the complaint from a Beverly Hills resident about the typical sagging wires. McLain mentioned that photos attached to a complaint are very helpful.

PROVIDER RELATED TOPICS

a. Comcast

There was no representative present.

b. AT&T/Uverse/Direct TV

There was no representative present. However, McLain had spoken with Robert Jones, AT&T Representative, at the NATOA Conference where the big announcement was FirstNet which is the priority access for first responders. It is a new program and AT&T has been selected to build and manage the first broadband network dedicated to America's first responders. Michigan was the very first state to "opt in". She will discuss this in more detail during **OLD BUSINESS**.

c. WOW

There was no representative present. WOW was not represented at the NATOA Conference.

BAPA/BAMA REPORT

Greg Kowalski referred to Greg Black's memo to BACB dated September 14. 2017. He listed the completed **BAMA** Programs which were the seven (7) regularly scheduled municipal meetings, Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting, the BACB Meeting, Parks and Rec Board Meeting, Multi Modal Board Meeting, Special Birmingham Commission and Planning Board Workshop and two (2) Baldwin Public Library Board and Trust Meetings.

For the **BAPA** Programs, from the BACB area individual producers and organizations, twenty-four (24) programs were taped. He listed all the programs. Tonight is the last Concert in the Park for the summer.

Regarding the **VOLUNTEER PRODUCER and CAMERA WORKSHOPS**, those residents who are interested in doing a workshop, producing their own show and/or volunteering on a program can contact BCTV at 248-433-7790 to schedule a one-on-one appointment date and time.

On Monday McLain was the guest of Chuck Moss and David Potts on "Eye on Oakland" talking about Cable and what's happening in telecommunications. She thanked BCTV and its Staff for a wonderful experience. She also mentioned that Black and Rota have followed up and have compiled a very detailed review of all the equipment that is necessary to upgrade the Birmingham studio and production and also work on the truck. She acknowledged that this was a huge project and thanked all those involved.

PEG GRANT REQUEST- THE VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN

Jim Creech, Franklin Village Administrator, had sent a letter (dated September 14, 2017) to White which was included in the Cable Board's packet, providing a brief background history of Franklin's website and how the grant would be used. Also in the packet was an August 22, 2017 letter to Creech from Marion Phillips, Franklin's summer Intern, with a full explanation of the process she used to evaluate all the proposals as it related to the redesign of the new website and, finally, her recommendation.

Marion Phillips, a junior at the Univ. of Michigan who is studying History and Political Science, addressed the Board. She gave a brief explanation of why Franklin needed a new website and why Revize, from Troy, Michigan was the appropriate choice for the Village and its needs. She personally evaluated the current website, wrote the RFP, solicited responses and presented her findings and final recommendation to the Village Council for its approval. Easy maintenance and easy to use were important factors as were some new features, enhancements and other improvements which increase the functionality of the website. For these reasons, Franklin is requesting a grant in the amount not to exceed \$9,800 for the redesign of its website, which includes the \$150/month maintenance cost for the first year.

Ettenson clarified that the \$150 maintenance cost per month (\$1,800/yr.) was included in the \$9,800 cost. Phillips added that the contract states that it would remain the same for at least three (3) years. Responding to Eick's inquiry, Phillips stated that a one day, in-person training session, costing \$600, was included in the grant request.

Motion by Borgon, seconded by Fenberg to approve the PEG grant request from the Village of Franklin in the amount not to exceed \$9,800.00 for a complete redesign of its website, including \$1,800.00 for tech support, software updates and website hosting for one (1) year.

Regarding the recent security breaches, Phillips addressed Fenberg's concern and noted that security was a priority and very important. The subject was listed in the "Request for Proposal" and Revize, specializing in municipal websites, understands the importance of keeping government and resident information secure.

(Borgon left at 8:22 AM)

Abraham inquired about the website having a special app for mobile devices. Phillips stated that there would not be an app but there would be an optimized mobile version of it that would also be simultaneously updated with the software designs for the desktop version of the website.

Bayer cautioned that software updates would be included in the monthly maintenance charge but not design or extensive changes to the website. If any of those are considered, they would need to be put in the Village's budget.

Stakhiv, Representative for Franklin, thanked and praised Marion Phillips for her outstanding job on this matter.

Roll Call Vote:

Motion Passed: (9-0) (Borgon was absent for the vote)

OLD BUSINESS

McLain gave her report of the NATOA Conference stressing that the atmosphere was invigorating, refreshing and outstanding. She witnessed a partnership between providers, governmental officials, municipal representatives, local government, FCC and a FTC representative; some innovators she had never seen before. The group of sponsors was slightly different which she thought was an interesting reflection of what was happening in cable. In the past Comcast has been very prominent but this year there was only a couple of representatives from Virginia present along with their Cable Board. AT&T was a smaller sponsor and WOW was not there. The mobile companies were well represented (T Mobile, Verizon and Mobility) and generally, there was a group of technical people present. It was one of the largest groups the conference has had and it was a very interactive presentation. Some of the speakers were ones very prominent in the industry.

She shared and detailed some of the subjects on the agenda, emphasizing that one of the themes of NATOA is "They will not leave anyone behind" which mirrors what is said on the local level, including the BACB. For her, the biggest highlight was what is happening in legislation, which is almost nothing. Telecommunication is at the bottom of everyone's list in Washington, with the exception of FirstNet which is designated just for Police, Fire and First Responders. The subject of "leaving consumers behind" was also addressed.

McLain reminded subscribers that when communicating with a cable company about a bill there is pertinent information that they need to write down and retain: Identification Number and name of the Customer Representative, "real time" notes taken, an understanding of what the resident is asking for and what the representative is hearing, and finally the resident needs something in writing or in an email to confirm what has been agreed to. The negotiating of permits for Rights of Way is an issue and was discussed. She stressed to residents that the Cable Board is working very hard on their behalf and, in fact, will be doing more out-reach. She, personally, will be doing more public speaking in the community about the importance of the Board.

McLain wanted to personally thank Bob Borgon for sending her to this conference nine (9) years ago where she met Rob Edelstein, who at the time was one of the FCC's chairs. At this year's conference she re-connected with him and he remembered their conversation from that first meeting. She hoped that he and his former friends at the FCC were remembering that the consumer is "King" and they make sure that all the groups (single parent families, elderly, people with medical issues, etc.) who are often forgotten are connected for health and safety. Last week Edelstein did a presentation as the new representative of the wireless companies, explaining that their profits were not increasing and, in fact, believed they were at a plateau and the only reason mobile providers were partnering to expand small cell and DAS was to have everyone covered.

Ettenson, who had gone to this conference five (5) years ago with McLain, inquired about what she had found that was different. For her, "Broadband" was an important topic. Everything is moving toward "Internet Streaming" and back and forth connectivity. Because of this she feels that what happens at the local level is even more important than ever, as the Cable Board gives back to the community and supports FirstNet and those types of communication.

Partnerships are very important. McLain mentioned that about a month ago she received a call from a brand new Communications Representative from Pontiac who was struggling due to very small PEG fees and a small budget. Due to the elections being in the near future he needed to get his entire program up and going. BACB has connected him with some of our partners through Michigan NATOA.

NEW BUSINESS

None

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

McLain mentioned that she received a question from the public about why BACB didn't have a Facebook page and why the meetings weren't live on Facebook. She is open to this if any Board Member is interested.

BOARD COMMENTS

Delaney mentioned that Beverly Hills has also agreed to work with Revize to update its website. All the points Phillips identified in her report are the same with Beverly Hills. He thanked McLain for attending and reporting on the NATOA Conference. He felt it very important that this practice be continued.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 AM.